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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good afternoon. I

          3  am Victor Robles, Chair of the Committee on Health.

          4                 Please identify yourself for the

          5  record and begin your testimony.

          6                 MS. LEON: Thank you.

          7                 Chairman Robles, and distinguished

          8  members of the Health Committee, good afternoon. I

          9  am Jean Leon, Senior Vice President for the

         10  Brooklyn/Staten Island Family Health Network which

         11  includes Kings County Hospital Center (KCHC). Next

         12  to me is Dr. Van Dunn, Senior Vice President for

         13  Medical and Professional Affairs, at the Health and

         14  Hospitals Corporation.

         15                 To begin, let me just say that Kings

         16  County Hospital Center provides more than 700,000

         17  ambulator care visits per year. Of that number, more

         18  than 300,000 are self-pay visits, or 40 percent of

         19  the hospital's visits are generated by uninsured

         20  patients. This demonstrates HHC's and KCHC's

         21  steadfast commitment to providing health care

         22  services to the people of the City of New York

         23  regardless of the ability to pay.

         24                 KCHC is also committed to providing

         25  the highest standard of care to our patients.
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          2                 The hospital not only received high

          3  marks in its most recent JCAHO survey, but for the

          4  first time in the hospital's history, earned a

          5  commendation.

          6                 I am also pleased to report that we

          7  continue to move forward on the building of a new

          8  KCHC. Phase I of our redevelopment plan is

          9  progressing on time and on budget.

         10                 In late October, the Health Care

         11  Financing Administration HCFA, of the U.S.

         12  Department of Health and Human Services conducted an

         13  allegation survey at Kings County Hospital Center.

         14  Such surveys are routinely undertaken whenever an

         15  allegation or complaint is lodged about a health

         16  care facility.

         17                 As you may know, HCFA is the federal

         18  agency charged with the oversight of health care

         19  facilities which receive federal dollars for health

         20  care programs, such as Medicaid and Medicare.

         21                 In order to participate in the

         22  Medicaid and Medicare Programs, health care

         23  organizations must comply with specific HCFA

         24  conditions and participation.

         25                 The October HCFA survey identified
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          2  instances in which the survey team determine that

          3  Kings County Hospital Center did not fully comply

          4  with HCFA standards. A Statement of Deficiencies was

          5  forwarded to Kings County in November delineating

          6  the survey team's findings.

          7                 Within the time frame required, a

          8  plan of correction, which included specific

          9  corrective actions to be taken, time frames for

         10  implementation, and monitoring activities were

         11  submitted to HCFA by Kings County Hospital.

         12                 This plan of correction has already

         13  been approved by HCFA. However, I would like to

         14  share with the Committee some of the issues about

         15  which HCFA surveyors noted concern.

         16                 One issue upon which the HCFA survey

         17  focused was the location of the Urgent Care Center.

         18  The Urgent Care Center was located within one block

         19  of the Adult Emergency Room.

         20                 However, the Emergency Medical

         21  Treatment and Active Labor Act, known as the EMTALA,

         22  which is also known as the Federal Anti-Dumping Law,

         23  requires that every person who comes to an Emergency

         24  Room for treatment undergo a medical screening exam.

         25                 Kings County Hospital Center's
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          2  procedure had been to evaluate which patients should

          3  remain in the Emergency Department for medical

          4  screening and treatment and which should be treated

          5  in another setting within the institution.

          6                 Non-emergency patients had been

          7  directed, unescorted, to the Urgent Care Center for

          8  treatment.

          9                 The Urgent Care Center was developed

         10  eight years ago to better manage non-emergency

         11  patients who come to the KCHC Emergency Department.

         12                 As you know, emergency rooms have

         13  often been used as a substitute for a primary care

         14  provider by many people with non-emergency

         15  conditions. It should be added that a major goal of

         16  managed care is to lessen the number of unnecessary

         17  emergency room visits.

         18                 HCFA cited Kings County for a

         19  violation of the EMTALA because people were being

         20  referred unaccompanied out of the ER to another

         21  location, the Urgent Care Center.

         22                 The hospital has corrected this

         23  technical violation by ensuring that all patients

         24  presenting to the emergency room have a medical

         25  screening by a licensed medical professional upon
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          2  entry into the emergency room.

          3                 To facilitate the medical screening

          4  process, the Urgent Care Center has been moved

          5  adjacent to the emergency room.

          6                 The HCFA surveyors also cited the

          7  hospital for not maintaining a central log for all

          8  patients presenting to the Emergency Department,

          9  whether or not they received care in the emergency

         10  room or were served at the Urgent Care Center.

         11                 The hospital has remedied this

         12  situation by relocating the Urgent Care Center next

         13  to the Emergency Room and training staff. A central

         14  log is kept in this area.

         15                 Another concern reflected in the HCFA

         16  survey report was that patients who may have needed

         17  emergency services were inappropriately referred

         18  from the Emergency Department to the Urgent Care

         19  Center.

         20                 With the relocation of the Urgent

         21  Care Center on November 9th, no one will be triaged

         22  or retriaged out of the Emergency Department.

         23                 In the Adult Emergency Room

         24  Registration and Triage Area, a sign indicated that

         25  Medicaid Managed Care patients should have proper
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          2  referral forms or authorization numbers.

          3                 The HCFA survey also cited the

          4  existence of this sign as non-compliance with HCFA

          5  standards. The surveyors determined that the sign

          6  appeared to insinuate that treatment could be

          7  delayed if proper insurance forms or documents were

          8  not presented.

          9                 The hospital immediately removed the

         10  sign in question. However, it should be pointed out

         11  that all hospitals ask patients about their

         12  insurance coverage.

         13                 While Kings County Hospital never

         14  denies treatment to anyone because of lack of

         15  insurance and in fact provides care regardless of

         16  one's ability to pay, the hospital does have a

         17  responsibility to obtain reimbursement from all

         18  third-party payers, including Medicaid, Medicare,

         19  Medicaid Managed Care HMOs and commercial insurers.

         20                 The HCFA survey also specifically

         21  cited KCHC for violating the federal guidelines

         22  concerning the transfer of patients. In a specific

         23  case a patient was transferred to another location

         24  within the facility without documentation of her

         25  consent and without supplying the appropriate
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          2  documentation in the medical record to the receiving

          3  service.

          4                 With the relocation of the Urgent

          5  Care Center, the in-servicing of staff, as well as

          6  the new policy of not triaging or retriaging

          7  patients out of the emergency room, such cases

          8  should not reoccur.

          9                 It is unfortunate that publicity

         10  surrounding this survey inaccurately portrayed Kings

         11  County Hospital to be in gross violation of the

         12  federal EMTALA, or the Anti-Dumping statute, and in

         13  danger of losing its Medicaid reimbursement. Such

         14  publicity does a disservice to HCFA and to the

         15  Health and Hospitals Corporation, who share the goal

         16  of ensuring high quality health care, and

         17  particularly to patients who depend upon Kings

         18  County and other public hospitals.

         19                 Thank you for inviting me to provide

         20  testimony on this important issue, and we will now

         21  answer any questions you have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 And my colleagues, if you would like

         25  to ask questions, please let Jose know so that I
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          2  will call upon you.

          3                 Let me perhaps, before I ask you

          4  questions there were given to me, let me perhaps

          5  understand clearly what you said in your testimony.

          6  Because as someone who does not profess that I am an

          7  expert in health care, maybe I don't understand it

          8  so I need some help.

          9                 On page two you pointed out that when

         10  the federal agency came in they identified certain

         11  instances in which the survey team determined that

         12  Kings County Hospital did not fully comply with HCFA

         13  standards. But if you look on page one, you started

         14  off by saying, in the second paragraph, okay? Where

         15  you say that Kings County is also committed, and you

         16  went on, and you pointed out that the hospital not

         17  only received high marks in its most recent joint

         18  commission accreditation survey, but that you, for

         19  the first time in the history, earned a

         20  commendation.

         21                 Help me to understand, how can you

         22  have a joint commission come in and give you high

         23  marks and commendation and when did that take place?

         24  Was that before the Health Care Finance

         25  Administration, HCFA, came in?
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          2                 MS. LEON: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then how then

          4  after you have your survey, now because of a

          5  complaint, because that is the way they come in,

          6  they come in, is the survey that the Joint

          7  Commission did, does it also have in its mechanism

          8  the same criterias that are set forth by the federal

          9  agency?

         10                 MS. LEON: In some instances they are

         11  the same.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, give me the

         13  incidences that are not related to the allegations.

         14  Or then from the allegations, they came in and found

         15  that you were in violation of their regulation.

         16                 MS. LEON: The Joint Commission does

         17  not look at whether the patient was triaged out of

         18  the ER to any other area in the institution to be

         19  treated.

         20                 The Joint Commission looked at the

         21  care received by the patients regardless of the

         22  setting in the institution.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is that the only

         24  area that the Joint Commission -- yes, that the

         25  Joint Commission does not look into?
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          2                 MS. LEON: Based on this report,

          3  basically that was the area, as a result of that

          4  area falling out, then we had the other tangential

          5  issues that fell out as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry, I

          7  didn't follow you.

          8                 Say that again.

          9                 MS. LEON: Right. Based on the fact

         10  that the patients were referred outside of the

         11  emergency room to be treated, as a result of that

         12  naturally there was a log where the patient was

         13  treated. So the log fell out because HCFA is looking

         14  for one central log.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When you say --

         16  again, please bear with me, I am not an expert. What

         17  do you mean by fall out?

         18                 MS. LEON: It is a deficiency.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What?

         20                 MS. LEON: That is because there was a

         21  deficiency in that area.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead.

         23                 MS. BROWN: When we use the term "fall

         24  out", it is usually we fall out of the range of

         25  standards of acceptability in complying with the
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          2  standards, so we say we fell out on that standard,

          3  and they identified a deficiency in a certain

          4  standard.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Laray, here is my

          6  question.

          7                 When the Joint Commission came in,

          8  part of what they are looking at, tell me the areas

          9  that fall similar with when the federal government

         10  came in and they looked at something, and now they

         11  cited you for not being in compliance. Is it

         12  similar? I need to know, because as a lay person,

         13  and anyone in this Committee, I don't understand it.

         14  If you are telling me that you had a Joint

         15  Commission inspection, and not only did you get high

         16  marks, but you got a commendation, and then that

         17  took place when? When did that survey take place?

         18                 MS. BROWN: November of '97.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In November.

         20                 And then HCFA came in?

         21                 MS. BROWN: October --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: '98?

         23                 MS. BROWN: '98.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: '98. So, almost a

         25  year from that date, because of a complaint -- well,
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          2  does HCFA normally come into an institution, for

          3  example, like I believe the Joint Commission is

          4  every what --

          5                 MS. BROWN: Every three years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Three years,

          7  okay. Does the federal government do similarly, or

          8  do they just come in on a complaint?

          9                 MS. BROWN: No. What I would like to

         10  do is, the reason Dr. Dunn is here, as you know, he

         11  is the Corporate Officer responsible overall for

         12  quality assurance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         14                 MS. BROWN: If Dr. Dunn could briefly

         15  describe what the scope of HCFA reviews -- well,

         16  excuse me, JCHO reviews are, and how those are

         17  distinguished from a HCFA allegation survey, I think

         18  that might be helpful.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         20                 DR. VAN DUNN: With Joint Commission

         21  there are over 500 standards that they come in and

         22  review a facility every three years, and they look

         23  at the policies and procedures of the facility,

         24  their bylaws, how they are delivering care.

         25                 When HCFA comes in, or the State
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          2  comes in --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, before you

          4  go there, let me be clear.

          5                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now you are

          7  saying that when the Joint Commission comes in,

          8  which is not really a governmental body, correct?

          9                 DR. VAN DUNN: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I mean, I am

         11  learning. Slow, but I am learning.

         12                 But in the professional community, if

         13  you don't have this Joint Commission on your side,

         14  all hell breaks loose, and I speak from my own

         15  institution, where we were accused of losing our

         16  accreditation. And it depends on who you are talking

         17  to because some say we didn't, some say we did, but

         18  I am learning.

         19                 Those 500 plus you are referring to,

         20  in those 500, since your reimbursement from the

         21  federal government, i.e. Medicaid, Medicare, there

         22  are certain conditions that you must meet in order

         23  to be reimbursed, do they also fall in within those

         24  500 criterias when the Joint Commission comes in?

         25                 DR. VAN DUNN: Some of them do, but
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          2  most of them do not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The signage.

          4                 DR. VAN DUNN: That does not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In fairness to my

          6  colleague, we had a meeting and I don't want to

          7  sound like I am so smart, to think that I know it

          8  all, we had a meeting to prepare ourselves for this

          9  hearing, and also understand it, and I also asked

         10  the same question, although a little different, and

         11  I wanted to know what was those cited violations.

         12                 One of the cited violations you

         13  mentioned was the sign which misled the public or

         14  they proceeded in interpreting that someone who

         15  knows nothing about health care in reading the sign

         16  may lead their thinking that if you don't have the

         17  proper coverage, you are not going to get service. I

         18  think that is what you said. Is it fair to say --MS.

         19  LEON: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, in our

         21  meeting I wanted to know when that sign became

         22  outdated, because if the sign went up at one time,

         23  there was a reason why the sign went up. And there

         24  was a time where you did, and you still do, it's

         25  just that you don't put the signs up anymore, where
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          2  you inquire whether you do have some coverage so

          3  that you then in the reimbursement, you can be

          4  reimbursed if there is a coverage by insurance, by

          5  Medicaid? So far so good?

          6                 In that meeting when I confronted

          7  you, I said why was the sign there, and why did they

          8  fine you in violation? You said to me that they

          9  changed the regulations or the mandate. And if you

         10  remember, I said when did that happen, and you told

         11  me back when the Joint Commission thereabouts, a

         12  year before HCFA came in, and my next question was,

         13  why didn't somebody remove the sign if you no longer

         14  need to have the sign up? Do you remember that

         15  discussion?

         16                 So, Doctor, you were there. I am

         17  trying to make sure we understand, and the public

         18  understands, that the sign -- yes, you were in

         19  violation. Because a year ago it changed. Somebody

         20  in that institution who was responsible for what

         21  used to be called housekeeping, or maintenance, now

         22  they call environmental department, environmental

         23  something -- what do they call that?

         24                 MS. LEON: Environmental Services.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Environmental
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          2  Services.

          3                 Somebody was supposed to be keeping

          4  track of what changes come into be, and that sign

          5  should have been removed, if not a year ago, at

          6  least six months before the federal government came

          7  in because of a complaint, and now you are being

          8  cited for a sign which in reality you were in

          9  violation, and you knew it, and that sign stood up

         10  there, everyone saw it, and no one did nothing.

         11                 Now, I am showing you a simple

         12  layman's interpretation, and I have not even gotten

         13  to the real medical, you know, emergency room or

         14  what have you.

         15                 So, can we get back to that issue?

         16  What in the Joint Commission falls within those 400,

         17  500 conditions -- I don't know what you use, the

         18  word, and now tell me which ones of the HCFA when

         19  they came in falls within those 500?

         20                 I want to know how many of those were

         21  still existing, and HCFA found you in violation.

         22                 DR. VAN DUNN: To try to answer your

         23  question as clear as possible, when Joint Commission

         24  comes in, they look at our policies and procedures,

         25  and checked that our policies and procedures are the
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          2  things that we are following.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

          4                 DR. VAN DUNN: And our policies and

          5  procedures, it outlines how we go about, you know,

          6  triaging patients, how we go about doing financial

          7  counseling. And when they look at that and they look

          8  at the sign and sees it is consistent with the

          9  policy that is in the book then there is no

         10  citation. But with HCFA they are very specific that

         11  financial information as a reason for not providing

         12  care is illegal and is in violation. So that is an

         13  instance where you are in violation of EMTALA, but

         14  you are compliant with Joint Commission because you

         15  have policies and procedures that relate to the sign

         16  that you have --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me again try

         18  to understand something.

         19                 If HCFA says you must escort the

         20  patient from the emergency room, I think that is

         21  what you said, wherever they go, and now the Joint

         22  Commission comes in, is that one of the conditions

         23  that they would be looking at? Because, again, if

         24  you don't comply to the federal mandate, what is at

         25  stake here, is not oops I made a mistake, it is
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          2  about dollars and cents. So is the escort, whatever

          3  the area is, whether it is emergency, where you

          4  clearly for emergency purposes have to escort; you

          5  said, well, we had some non-emergencies, and because

          6  they were non-emergencies, maybe they were routed,

          7  sent somewhere, and they were not part of it.

          8                 But the fact is when the federal

          9  government came in they cited you in saying, well,

         10  you are supposed to escort from the emergency room

         11  to wherever the other building is. And I am trying

         12  to understand, and for my colleagues in the report,

         13  you will have in the back of your report, in case

         14  you are interested, the correction plan, which was

         15  approved by the federal government, which will show

         16  you the citations which they found in the correction

         17  plan which you and the Corporation has committed

         18  itself to implement, and they have approved it. And

         19  by the way, they will be coming back, or they have

         20  already been to your facility, haven't they? To make

         21  sure that what you said it is being done, but when

         22  are they supposed to come back again to double check

         23  that what you said you were going to do was done?

         24                 MS. LEON: They were here on Monday

         25  and Tuesday of this week.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This week.

          3  Because by the 15th or the 14th of February, if you

          4  are not in compliance, then you could be removed,

          5  correct? Yes?

          6                 MS. LEON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, hopefully

          8  before the 14th you will be in compliance; is that

          9  fair to say?

         10                 MS. LEON: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, again, Dr.

         12  Van Dunn, tell me what conditions overlap with the

         13  Joint Commission, which they use because the federal

         14  government mandates it.

         15                 Give me some areas that you will

         16  conceive that you violated.

         17                 DR. VAN DUNN: I want to first clarify

         18  that when Joint Commission comes in, they do not

         19  come in with a list of all of the federal

         20  regulations and look to see if the facility is

         21  compliant with those regulations. They look at your

         22  policies and procedures and to make sure that your

         23  policies and procedures are what indeed is in

         24  effect.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And who sets the
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          2  tone for the Joint Commission when they come in to

          3  do their joint Commission?

          4                 How do they get their 500 plus, if in

          5  this new health care, managed care world, that now

          6  everything is about being reimbursed, and you are

          7  beholding, you are dependent upon being reimbursed

          8  because you admit to us and we accept it, that I

          9  remember, if I remember correctly, a report came out

         10  that says close to 40 percent of people going

         11  through HHC facilities are uninsured.

         12                 So, we started off with a

         13  disadvantage, because 40 percent of those who use

         14  your facilities, there is no coverage, so you have

         15  to rely upon the rest, 60 percent, to pick up the

         16  slack when it comes to reimbursement; is that fair

         17  to say?

         18                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, again, who

         20  sets the tone for the Joint Commission if somebody

         21  has to begin to steer the ship of state, to protect

         22  that 60 percent so that you get reimbursed, because

         23  please note that the 40 percent non-insured, your

         24  mandate is still give service, the federal

         25  government steps in and says you are in violation,
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          2  and by the 14th of February, if you don't get this

          3  in to correct, you might be stripped of

          4  participating, I believe, in two areas, correct?

          5  Medicaid and Medicare, right?

          6                 MS. LEON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          8                 MS. BROWN: To answer your question in

          9  terms of JCHO and HCFA, first, as Dr. Dunn said,

         10  there are hundreds of standards that JCHO applies

         11  when they come in to visit all health care

         12  organizations across the country.

         13                 They arrive at those standards in a

         14  myriad of ways. First, JCHO, as you inferred, is a

         15  private organization, it is not a governmental

         16  organization. However, they collect the standards of

         17  States Departments of the Health, they collect the

         18  federal standards, and they also identify quality

         19  assured standards that have been identified by the

         20  industry, by hospitals, long-term care facilities,

         21  physicians, et cetera.

         22                 JCHO has a board or a Board of

         23  Commissioners, that Board takes all of those

         24  governmental standards and quality care standards by

         25  the professions and comes up with their manual for
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          2  accreditation.

          3                 HCFA --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So --

          5                 MS. BROWN: If I may?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to make

          7  sure.

          8                 So, they do take into consideration

          9  some of the mandates --

         10                 MS. BROWN: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then won't these

         12  two areas --

         13                 MS. BROWN: Just if I can finish it

         14  may answer your question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         16                 MS. BROWN: HCFA recognizes that

         17  process and recognizes how they come to, they arrive

         18  at their standards, and therefore, if a hospital or

         19  a health care organization achieves JCHO

         20  accreditation, they are deemed to comply with HCFA

         21  standards.

         22                 HCFA has in fact a formal contract

         23  with the Joint Accreditation of Hospitals at that

         24  organization so that they can act as their agent

         25  when they come out.
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          2                 So, the connection between JCHO and

          3  the hospital and receipt of Medicaid and Medicare

          4  is, as you said, because if you don't get

          5  accreditation from JCHO, your Medicaid, Medicare is

          6  also at risk because of that deeming relationship by

          7  HCFA.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I

          9  understood that clearly, and this is my last and

         10  then I will turn to my colleagues, because I have a

         11  lot of questions.

         12                 But let me just say this: I

         13  understand if you get Joint Commission

         14  accreditation, that is deemed by the federal

         15  government that they are in compliance. But

         16  somewhere along the road, six months, a year, i.e. a

         17  complaint, now the federal government comes in and

         18  finds you in violation; explain to me, how often can

         19  you do that before the federal government says to

         20  the Joint Commission, excuse me, you know, you

         21  cleared this hospital, we got a complaint, we came

         22  in and clearly they were in violation.

         23                 MS. BROWN: May I answer that?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

         25                 MS. BROWN: HCFA does not have to tell
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          2  JCHO anything. Their actions are -- they interact,

          3  direct HCFA, interacts directly with the health care

          4  organization. So they will determine, after they

          5  come in based on a survey or an investigation, and

          6  if that hospital falls out from any of their

          7  standards based on HCFA's determination, they

          8  override the JCHO or the State.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me just

         10  make my last statement, and just for the record, it

         11  is my own personal evaluation. Then honestly I have

         12  no faith in the Joint Commission, if a Joint

         13  Commission comes into Wood Hull Hospital, because I

         14  want to get away from Kings County for the moment,

         15  and all of a sudden says we are okay, and six months

         16  after they came in, the federal government comes in

         17  and supersedes them saying you are in violation,

         18  then you know something? I have a question mark

         19  about the Joint Commission.

         20                 Because I, as a lay person, don't

         21  understand, that if you have 500 plus standards that

         22  says medical care, medical services, and now they

         23  find things to be okay, and it just so happens

         24  somebody along the way comes with a complaint, not

         25  founded -- anyone can make a complaint, anyone can
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          2  make an allegation, but when then the federal

          3  government comes in and they start now implementing

          4  which they are the ones who pay the price tag, or

          5  they pay for the purse, they have the purse, then I

          6  am going to tell you something - I really have

          7  reservation about the Joint Commission surveys.

          8                 MS. BROWN: The Joint Commission is

          9  only one entity that accredits a health care

         10  organization, as you know.

         11                 The accreditation and approval

         12  processes for health care organizations in hospitals

         13  especially is very complex. You have a myriad of

         14  agencies state and levels of government within that

         15  and different accreditation agencies, it is almost

         16  like a fruit salad, in that HCFA looks at one types

         17  of family of fruit and JCHO looks at another,

         18  encompassing some of those fruits, the state looks

         19  at other things. They are very different reviews,

         20  and health care organizations and HHC in Kings

         21  County take very seriously all of those

         22  accreditation and surveying entities, because we

         23  have to.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, one more

         25  point. Let me make sure again I understand these
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          2  dates.

          3                 The Joint Commission came in in

          4  November of '97 you said, right?

          5                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before the Joint

          7  Commission, it is my understand, from my colleagues

          8  information, every quarterly institutions come

          9  before, and correct me if I am wrong, the Health and

         10  Hospital Corporation's Quality Assurance Committee,

         11  of which I am now told at this last meeting that Dr.

         12  Neal Cohen is Chair of that Committee.

         13                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes, he is.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: He is the

         15  Commissioner of Health. And this Committee is

         16  supposed to make sure that what is expected of the

         17  facilities within HHC are being conformed to; is

         18  that fair to say?

         19                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before November

         21  of '97, when did this hospital go before that

         22  Committee?

         23                 DR. VAN DUNN: Kings County goes

         24  before the Quality Assurance Committee on a

         25  quarterly basis, so that is every three months.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So about

          3  September of '97, before the Joint Commission, this

          4  institution went before the Committee; is that fair

          5  to say?

          6                 DR. VAN DUNN: It is fair to say, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And based upon

          8  what was given to you, you accepted it as what they

          9  give you?

         10                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then in '97 the

         12  Joint Commission came in, gave you high marks and

         13  commendations, now almost -- now, you said that the

         14  federal government came in after a complaint was

         15  lodged, what month was that again?

         16                 MS. LEON: October of 1998.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: '98. Now, when

         18  was this facility again before that Committee in

         19  '98?

         20                 DR. VAN DUNN: In August of '98.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Say that again?

         22                 DR. VAN DUNN: August of '98.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: August. So that

         24  when October came in, and we are now into January,

         25  has this facility come before that Committee after
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          2  October '98?

          3                 DR. VAN DUNN: They came before, it

          4  was in December of '98.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And what was

          6  presented to that Committee is, I am assuming, the

          7  corrective plan?

          8                 DR. VAN DUNN: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And because of

         10  the corrective plan, I am assuming this facility

         11  will be coming back before that Committee before

         12  February 14th?

         13                 DR. VAN DUNN: You are on the schedule

         14  for --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, if you have

         16  until the 14th of February and you don't do what you

         17  are supposed to do, you might be taken out of the

         18  program, although you normally wait quarterly,

         19  wouldn't you be wanting to have this facility come

         20  back before the 14th?

         21                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes. So, they

         23  will be coming back before the 14th.

         24                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And they --
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          2                 MS. BROWN: The --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES:  I beg your

          4  pardon?

          5                 MS. BROWN: The Kings County has been

          6  back to the Committee and to the Board in outside of

          7  that quarterly scheduled because of the HCFA review.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

          9                 And so far you are satisfied with the

         10  documentation that has been submitted, has that

         11  Committee or anyone from the Corporation physically

         12  gone out to the facility and verified -- it is one

         13  thing to put things in paper, it is one thing to see

         14  for yourself; have you actually gone out there and

         15  physically walked through to make sure that whatever

         16  the corrective plan calls for and whatever was said

         17  to you at the Committee is factual?

         18                 MS. LEON: Yes, the President was

         19  there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who went out to

         21  the facility?

         22                 MS. LEON: Dr. Marcos was out to the

         23  facility.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When?

         25                 MS. LEON: To review the plan of
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          2  correction.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When?

          4                 MS. LEON: On November the twenty --

          5  towards the end of November, I can't remember the

          6  date.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          8                 Council Member Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 Let me just read one of the citations

         12  as I am trying to understand it.

         13                 It says a patient showed up at the ER

         14  at 1:12 p.m. on January 17th, 1998, complaining of

         15  lower back pain and muscle aches that lasted five

         16  days. It was later diagnosed that that patient had a

         17  muscle disease that could shut down the kidneys.

         18  However, the initial triage the patient was

         19  diagnosed as being a non-emergency case and was told

         20  to go to the Urgent Care Center.

         21                 Four hours later a doctor at the

         22  Urgent Care Center examined him and then sent him

         23  back to the emergency room where he was later

         24  admitted.

         25                 Having said to us that at times or in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  most times when a person comes to the emergency room

          3  and is deemed to be non-emergency, that person is

          4  not escorted. If this person felt that he or she was

          5  getting the run-around and decided that I can't be

          6  bothered, I am going home, it could have resulted in

          7  this kind of, you know, unsupervised, if

          8  undocumented that this person had come to the

          9  emergency room and went home, what you think the

         10  outcome could have been. Let me ask the physician.

         11                 DR. VAN DUNN: Are you talking

         12  specifically about this case?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, I am

         14  specifically asking about this case, yes. Because he

         15  went twice, he came to the emergency room, was

         16  deemed not to have been an emergency, went back to

         17  the Urgent Care Center who sent him back to the

         18  Emergency Room before this person was admitted, and

         19  if what I am reading is right, the person's kidneys

         20  could have been shut down, and I am just asking, if

         21  this person did not persist, and went home, what do

         22  you think the results could have been?

         23                 DR. VAN DUNN: Well, I think before

         24  answering your question fully, first to say that

         25  when a patient comes in they are triaged by the
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          2  nurse who gets a history and determines what

          3  category they are in. And the patient was triaged to

          4  be non-emergent. Even if that patient would have

          5  stayed in the emergency room as a non-emergency, the

          6  waiting time might have been the same, or it might

          7  have been a little shorter.

          8                 In the issue of this case, you are

          9  always concerned with, after you are triaged and

         10  getting a further assessment, that the patient may

         11  have medical problems that acquire immediate

         12  attention.

         13                 That can always happen when someone

         14  is initially triaged, that initially triaged may be

         15  non-urgent and that it may become urgent or then it

         16  may become emergency.

         17                 So, it is a continuum of assessment

         18  and that is why you try to continually assess a

         19  patient even when they are waiting to be seen to see

         20  if their condition has changed.

         21                 In this specific case, there would be

         22  a concern that if the patient did not stay and seek

         23  care, an adverse consequence may have occurred that

         24  would have endangered the health of this patient.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: This patient
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          2  is taken directly from the report, you know that I

          3  am reading it from the report.

          4                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And now the

          6  corrective response to that is in A400 all patients

          7  seeking care at Kings County Hospital will receive

          8  an appropriate medical screening examination within

          9  the ED effective November 9th, 1998. What does that

         10  mean?

         11                 DR. VAN DUNN: That means that the

         12  patient, when they go to the emergency room, were

         13  seen in the emergency room, the Urgent Care Center

         14  has been moved so that it is physically next to the

         15  emergency room, so the patient would not have to go

         16  unescorted to another part of the hospital.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me just

         18  back up, you know, because this thing drives me a

         19  little bit wild.

         20                 In 1995, and I will go back to say

         21  that I had extensive discussion with both Ms. Brown

         22  and with the Executive Director, Ms. Leon, when

         23  Kings County was getting cut through the bones,

         24  reduction both in staffing and everything else, and

         25  at that point in time I tried to find out what were
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          2  the critical services, because I knew then that you

          3  couldn't cut that deep in any one institution and it

          4  would not lead to this kind of report at some point

          5  in time where some disgruntled employee, if you

          6  will, or overworked physician or overworked

          7  therapist would call the federal government and say

          8  we are dying here, come in and take a look. And I

          9  think these are the kinds of things that we need to

         10  guard against and for which we need to make cogent

         11  argument whether it is to be administration to the

         12  federal government, that poor people need the same

         13  respect in their health care, and you cannot cut a

         14  hospital to its bone, then overwork the persons who

         15  are left and feel that we will not get to this

         16  point. So, even if we put something on a corrective

         17  plan and action and it is accepted by the federal

         18  government, who is going to monitor to make sure

         19  that we never get to this point again?

         20                 MS. BROWN: First, in response to your

         21  question to who is going to monitor, there are

         22  levels of monitoring that have happened and will

         23  continue to happen and will continue to be enforced.

         24                 The first level of monitoring is

         25  absolutely on site at the hospital. The executive
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          2  and clinical leadership at the hospital will monitor

          3  that the corrective actions that were accepted by

          4  the HCFA staff are going to continue to be in place

          5  and that the practices will continue to be the same

          6  as what was agreed upon in terms of the new

          7  practices, and the staff will continuously be

          8  re-in-service, or new staff will be trained to

          9  assure that the procedures that have been put in

         10  place are carried out.

         11                 The second level review and

         12  monitoring is at the corporation level. One of those

         13  mechanisms is the quarterly reporting to the quality

         14  assurance committee of the board. In that quarterly

         15  report there are not only, there is not only

         16  notation that has to be made or presentation that

         17  has to be made as to the recent surveys by HCFA or

         18  any other entity, but also issues of incidence,

         19  specific incidents. And if incidents are seen that

         20  where there looks to be a pattern where either the

         21  procedures in the emergency department of an

         22  inpatient department are identified, then the

         23  quality assurance committee of the board expects an

         24  immediate reparation or immediate corrective action

         25  in that context.
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          2                 Dr. Dunn, as the Senior Vice

          3  President of Quality Care for the Corporation, is

          4  the staff to that committee and he also and his

          5  staff have a level of review and oversight in

          6  working with facility to correct or to anticipate

          7  that there may be problems in the provision and

          8  care. And ultimately the Corporation's Board of

          9  Directors and its President, as Jean Leon mentioned,

         10  Dr. Marcos is intrinsically interested, intimately

         11  involved in identifying that mechanisms that need to

         12  be put in place to correct the citations that were

         13  identified by HCFA were put in place for the changes

         14  that had to me made.

         15                 HCFA's survey, I have to add here,

         16  and the citation and the fact that they accepted a

         17  corrective action plan, they did not identify that

         18  this was an issue of staffing. And their issue was,

         19  when you have created two discrete areas where

         20  people have to receive service and when the

         21  individuals first enter the portals of the hospital

         22  through an emergency room, that under the EMTALA

         23  laws you have to have certain mechanisms that

         24  ensure, that guarantee that all persons who come

         25  into an emergency room be seen and be screened by
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          2  licensed medical professionals, all, whether

          3  notwithstanding their level of emergent or urgent

          4  care; and two, if you are going to send someone from

          5  the emergency room, you need to make sure that you

          6  know that they get to that next place, and you know

          7  that the care is being rendered to them, based upon

          8  the assessments that are being provided.

          9                 We are confident, as we believe HCFA

         10  is, in having accepted the Corrective Action Plan,

         11  that we are meeting their standards and we have all

         12  commitment to continue to be vigilant to assure that

         13  those standards continue to be met at Kings County.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And let me

         15  just say, as a person who represents that district,

         16  and as a person who stayed out of the hospital,

         17  because I don't believe that as the elected official

         18  it is in my place or my responsibility to run in and

         19  out of institutions, even if I fund them other

         20  people have other ways of handling stuff, but I just

         21  want you to know that I am never going to be caught

         22  off guard again, and be called by the press about

         23  anything happening in the fourth district because I

         24  don't know. So, I am going on record now as saying I

         25  am going to show up. I am going to show up with my
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          2  ID and I just want the Administration to know that

          3  if you think you are going to keep me out, I am

          4  coming in with my ID because I am publicly elected

          5  by that community and if I feel that I can't go

          6  alone, please know that I will go with many, many

          7  people from that community.

          8                 So, I just want to go on notice as

          9  saying never again. I want to know what resources

         10  are needed to properly support and have my own

         11  community and the people whom I represent and I

         12  don't want to be told it is none of my business. I

         13  want manpower, womanpower and service, because my

         14  community needs no less than any other community.

         15                 I just want you to know I am coming.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         18  Harrison.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you. I

         20  just have a simple question. I don't understand

         21  something and I would like to have you clarify it

         22  for me.

         23                 On page three, at the very bottom you

         24  make reference to non-emergency patients who had

         25  been directed unescorted to the urgent care center,
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          2  and what I want to know is, what is the definition

          3  of an emergency, as opposed to the definition of an

          4  urgent care recipient; if you can tell me that,

          5  please?

          6                 What distinguishes an emergency, as

          7  opposed to an urgent care?

          8                 DR. VAN DUNN: Emergencies are usually

          9  determined as life-threatening, loss of limb or

         10  life. Urgent is that they need to receive medical

         11  care quickly, and non-urgent is that the condition

         12  could wait until follow-up to a primary care clinic,

         13  such as getting a prescription refilled, having sore

         14  throat, having a cold.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: So, how

         16  would, for example, someone complaining of chest

         17  pain or symptoms that might be attributed to a heart

         18  condition?

         19                 DR. VAN DUNN: That is considered an

         20  emergency. That is not non-urgent, that is an

         21  emergency.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Can you give

         23  me an example of what an urgent condition might be,

         24  as opposed to an emergency then?

         25                 DR. VAN DUNN: Someone who is coming
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          2  in who has got a fever, coughing, concerned that it

          3  might be a pneumonia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: That would

          5  be urgent?

          6                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Okay. And

          8  someone who is bleeding would be an emergency?

          9                 DR. VAN DUNN: That's an emergency.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: And someone

         11  with a broken bone would be an emergency?

         12                 DR. VAN DUNN: That's an emergency.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         17  Boyland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         19  few questions.

         20                 Give me the, based on the amount of

         21  patients that you see, the amount of uninsured and

         22  amount of insured patients that you see, the

         23  Medicaid dollar amount on how it would affect you if

         24  indeed this was taken away or snatched away based on

         25  these three very extensive, I assume they are very
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          2  loaded violations that was actually placed from

          3  HCFA; do you have a dollar amount on this?

          4                 MS. LEON: Yes, 80 percent of our

          5  budget is --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't you

          7  push the mic in because we have to record

          8  everything, okay?

          9                 MS. LEON: Eighty percent of Kings

         10  County's budget, in terms of its revenue budget, is

         11  Medicaid and Medicare dollars.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which is?  What

         13  is the dollar amount?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What is the

         15  dollar amount?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What is your

         17  budget?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Around about?

         19                 MS. LEON: Approximately I would say

         20  $240 million.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So now you

         22  are in jeopardy of this being based on these three

         23  facts and you said they would be back February 14th

         24  I think it was?

         25                 MS. LEON: No, they came back on
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          2  Monday and Tuesday of this week.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, but

          4  they will be returning based on --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, there will

          6  be a decision made before the 14th of February,

          7  whether they are in compliance. If they are not in

          8  compliance, then automatically they have the right

          9  to terminate them. I believe that is what the 14th

         10  is all about, correct?

         11                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Of course

         13  this would put you in great despair because

         14  therefore you would lose the bulk of your funding --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Most of it, if

         16  not all.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Which means

         18  no more Kings County basically?

         19                 I am summing it up. I am just trying

         20  to get a --

         21                 MS. BROWN: We are confident that this

         22  hospital will continue to participate in the

         23  Medicare and Medicaid program.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: You're welcome.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: There is one

          4  more question that I have.

          5                 Based on the information that was

          6  asked before and the questions that were asked also,

          7  now we have, you are looking at your emergency

          8  department and your urgent care center now, you have

          9  revamped it and you have gone over it and all of the

         10  violations that were stated have now been whisked

         11  away.

         12                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Now, based on

         14  the other evaluations that you are going to have to

         15  go through, so I am assuming that now the state and

         16  federal government  and also now the City, the

         17  spotlight is on Kings County. We are anticipating

         18  that everything now will be pretty much okay at

         19  Kings County as far as the other violations, that we

         20  won't have anything else occurring or, you know, you

         21  do your comprehensive plan, you have taken

         22  everything and turned it all around. I just want to

         23  get some assurances.

         24                 MS. LEON: We have responded to the

         25  HCFA plan, we have responded to the deficiencies.
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          2  Every deficiency that was sited, there was a plan

          3  for correction, which was accepted and that plan of

          4  correction is being fully implemented and will be

          5  continuously monitored.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Also, this is

          7  going a little off the subject. The development

          8  phases, now that we are moving into a new phase now,

          9  as far as the primary care facilities, will this at

         10  all affect where we are as far as the development of

         11  the new Corporation and the new hospitals and the --

         12                 MS. LEON: Not at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And really that

         14  cannot be answered because the Corporation has not

         15  made a decision whether to go with the joint venture

         16  or to continue the way they started; is that fair to

         17  say?

         18                 MS. LEON: No.

         19                 MS. BROWN: No.

         20                 MS. LEON: Phase one of the project is

         21  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It is already

         23  started.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no. Let's

         25  start again. Phase one is done already. Phase one is
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          2  already. You were at the stage of moving to phase

          3  two, however, most recently, because that other

          4  facility who could have been part of the joint

          5  venture before phase one started, chose not to move

          6  forward, you, the Corporation, not the institution,

          7  moved forward with phase one, correct?

          8                 MS. BROWN: Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you put your

         10  money where your mouth is, correct?

         11                 MS. BROWN: The City is supporting --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes. Very simple.

         13                 MS. BROWN: We are moving ahead with

         14  phase one of the redevelopment plan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am like that

         16  guy when the hearings in Washington, I may not be a

         17  simple country lawyer, but I am a simple country

         18  Brooklynite from Williamsburg, but I will get you.

         19                 We are now into phase two. You were

         20  ready to move into phase two, although this is off

         21  the subject, but now all of a sudden there has been

         22  a temporary, from first gear to second gear -- well,

         23  let me lay that out.

         24                 Because the Corporation passed a

         25  resolution which says by a certain date if that
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          2  other does not sign, seal, deliver, that it will be

          3  a joint venture, and joint meaning monies on both

          4  sides, then we will move into phase two without

          5  them. I think that is what was said to me at a

          6  previous hearing by you, Madame Vice President,

          7  Laray Brown, not you personally, but also Dr. Marcos

          8  and what have you.

          9                 If I am wrong, correct me.

         10                 MS. BROWN: This is very much not the

         11  issue of this hearing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

         13  that. She raised it but I want to make sure I keep

         14  the record straight.

         15                 MS. BROWN: In terms of the record, we

         16  are moving forward with the redevelopment of Kings

         17  County Hospital, phases one, phases two. There is a

         18  separate exploration --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         20                 MS. BROWN: That is occurring with the

         21  hospital, the other public hospital across the

         22  street, but that is an exploration and that has not

         23  put in second gear or postponed any of the

         24  Corporation's plans with respect to a new Kings

         25  County Hospital.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Has there been an

          3  official vote by the Board to move --

          4                 MS. BROWN: No, there has not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me. Again,

          6  I want to set the record straight. Because I am told

          7  things and one thing, I may be getting up there in

          8  age, but I don't forget certain things.

          9                 I am not aware of an official vote by

         10  the Health and Hospitals Corporation Board of

         11  Directors to move forward with phase two.

         12                 Has there been an official vote to

         13  move from phase one and go into phase two?

         14                 MS. BROWN: There has been no official

         15  vote by the Board of Directors to move forward with

         16  phase two, because the vote by the Board of

         17  Directors to move forward with redevelopment plan of

         18  Kings County Hospital, that redevelopment plan

         19  encompassed four phases. So, when the Board approved

         20  the redevelopment plan for Kings County, they in

         21  essence approved the total phased plan.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you are

         23  working phase by phase, correct? It is like when we

         24  do the budget.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  The question

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  was related to the --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member,

          4  your question was not related to this hearing, but I

          5  am not going to have --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It is all

          7  connected.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I know where you

          9  are coming from.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I want to

         12  keep this hearing straight because you are not in

         13  all of the meetings that I happen to be in and my

         14  colleagues, and I am not going to have double-talk

         15  by anybody, including members or the Corporation, I

         16  am going to be clear. This project at Kings County,

         17  yes, there are phases. I am not saying there is no

         18  commitment to move forward, but there are phased

         19  that have to be revisited to reappropriate the means

         20  to move forward with the phase; is that fair to say?

         21                 MS. BROWN: Yes, that's fair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Have we

         23  officially moved from phase one into phase two?

         24                 MS. BROWN: No, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Now, let's
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          2  go back.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I think I am

          4  finished, Mr. Chairman. But thank you for expounding

          5  on the question.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Because

          7  again, this issue on Kings County is too important,

          8  too sensitive, and I want to make sure, as long as I

          9  am the Chairman, that what I am told is going to be

         10  carried out.

         11                 In the last meeting that I had, to be

         12  clear for those who were not in those meetings, was

         13  the understanding that while the Corporation has

         14  taken no action to join in this venture, but they

         15  are allowing so that they can submit to the

         16  Corporation, what, if possible, if there is going to

         17  be a joint venture, which may change the direction

         18  and the means as we move forward with Kings County

         19  Hospital; is that fair?

         20                 MS. BROWN: That's fair. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, now,

         22  anybody else before I go back to my questions?

         23                 Council Member Henry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman. I wasn't here to get most of it.
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          2                 Madame Vice President, on page one of

          3  your testimony you alluded to the fact that you

          4  serve over 700,000 or you cater to over 700,000

          5  visits per year. Of that amount, at least 40 percent

          6  of those visits are generated by uninsured patients.

          7  Of that amount, how do you make up for that deficit,

          8  in dollar figures, because it means that you would

          9  be operating at a loss; do you have any way of, in

         10  terms of subsidies, in making up for the loss that

         11  you experienced by the 40 percent of those visits

         12  that are from patients that are not insured?

         13                 MS. LEON: As well as other agency

         14  facilities, other private hospitals, do get some

         15  dollars from the state and feds in terms of

         16  uncompensated care. So, it is not a dollar to a

         17  dollar but it is a percentage of the dollar. So we

         18  do get some uncompensated dollars.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And let me again,

         20  for the record, in fairness to both sides, let me be

         21  clear. This Committee and this Council, with the

         22  Administration and the Corporation in our last

         23  budget negotiation has put into place a pilot

         24  project where the City will have a joint venture for

         25  those uninsured so that they can, the City can help
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          2  in making it easier for the uninsured.

          3                 Madame Vice President, is that

          4  correct? So, while we are not at that point of the

          5  total 40 percent, but we all recognize jointly that

          6  that is an area we must address. As a matter of

          7  fact, I remember correctly yesterday, the President

          8  of the United States was talking about a federal

          9  program for the uninsured. So, if the federal

         10  government comes in, then your question will be

         11  picked up by reimbursements from the federal

         12  government.

         13                 But right now there is a pilot, and I

         14  don't remember -- well, I do know one hospital, and

         15  I think --

         16                 MS. BROWN: Generations Plus Network

         17  which includes the Metropolitan Hospital, Lincoln

         18  Hospital and the Belvis Diagnostic Treatment Center

         19  in Morrisania.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: My question has

         22  to do with the increase in the population in that

         23  area, it being invariably reflecting on the amount

         24  of cases that you would have in the hospitals.

         25                 Many, I would assume that by the same
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          2  token that many of those visits, some of them are

          3  repeated cases, do you have documentation that would

          4  reflect that?

          5                 MS. LEON: Yes, we do. Every patient

          6  who has a visit, their visits are documented.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: All right, and

          8  given the increase, or the potential increase in

          9  visits to Kings County Hospital, do you have the

         10  ability in terms of staffing and equipment to cope

         11  with that potential increase?

         12                 MS. LEON: Yes. Right now we have

         13  staff to render the 700,000 visits.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: But then by the

         15  same token you are planning to downsize it in

         16  certain areas, and that would impair your ability to

         17  deliver services in those areas.

         18                 MS. LEON: Well, as you know, with the

         19  advent of managed care, the goal is to keep people

         20  healthy in the community and not to come to

         21  hospitals. So, the energies would be directed to the

         22  community in terms of wellness care, and so that you

         23  would have less people coming less frequently to the

         24  hospitals for care, but being cared more at home and

         25  in their community.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: My final

          3  question has to do with the proximity to what used

          4  to be Downstate Medical, it has been renamed into

          5  something else. To what extent are you working in

          6  conjunction or cooperation with that hospital to

          7  address, you know, some of these cases, or to

          8  provide even a better quality of care.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member,

         10  let me just say this, because you are really not

         11  getting to the issue at hand with what was found at

         12  Kings County.

         13                 Let me just say, there have been

         14  hearings by this Committee on the relationship

         15  through contracts between Kings County and

         16  Downstate, which is different from this hearing.

         17                 And let me repeat that. What you are

         18  referring to is not at any means what the federal

         19  government came in, based upon complaints and

         20  allegations, and found at the facility. Your

         21  question really relates to contracts between the

         22  Kings County facility and Downstate; is that fair to

         23  say? Which has nothing to do with this oversight and

         24  what was found by HCFA.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: But Mr.
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          2  Chairman, in terms of the delivery of services, I

          3  mean if there is cooperation --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no,

          5  understand what I am saying.

          6                 This hearing goes back to that the

          7  federal government found that they were in violation

          8  and they are in jeopardy of being terminated from

          9  the Medicaid Medicare Program which the executive

         10  director says that in their budget, is it fair to

         11  say that 80 percent of your budget relies solely on

         12  federal reimbursement? Do you understand?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Mr. Chairman,

         14  one can have an impact on the other. One can affect

         15  the other's ability to deliver services.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No. And you know

         17  why? I will tell you why. Let me be clear. The

         18  violations against the facility was, i.e. the

         19  emergency room and the services that go through

         20  there, correct?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: But they do

         22  share stuff.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But that's a

         24  different area, Council member. That is a different

         25  area, sir. Unless you are telling me that you have
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          2  doctors in your ER room from Downstate.

          3                 Does your contract call for doctors

          4  to be used in the ER at Kings County?

          5                 MS. LEON: No, SUNY Downstate does not

          6  have an emergency department.

          7                 MS. BROWN: Kings County is the

          8  emergency provider --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

         10  that, and Downstate has its own emergency.

         11                 And, yes, I know there is a contract

         12  where you and them --

         13                 MS. BROWN: SUNY --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me?

         15                 MS. BROWN: University Hospital of

         16  Brooklyn, the Downstate, the new name for the

         17  Downstate?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

         19                 MS. BROWN: They do not have an

         20  emergency room.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no. Follow

         22  what I am saying to you. I want to make sure that we

         23  understand what we are talking about.

         24                 I am not saying that there is no

         25  contract between, when I was in the Assembly it was
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          2  called Downstate, maybe I am so old. I am like the,

          3  I am going to get to it, the sign that should have

          4  been taken down a year ago and everybody saw it and

          5  no one said anything, well I am like that sign. I

          6  remember Downstate as Downstate. There was no

          7  Downstate when I first went to work with Shirley

          8  Chism. So I saw Downstate being erected before some

          9  members of the Council and the Assembly and the

         10  Senate and the Congressional even knew that existed.

         11                 Now, the contract that has any

         12  affiliation between Kings County, and what do you

         13  call it now?

         14                 MS. BROWN: They call it the

         15  University of State.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What does the

         17  State hospital call itself?

         18                 MS. BROWN: State University.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: State University.

         20  There is a contract or a relationship between them

         21  and you, yes?

         22                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And in that

         24  contract you are supposed to provide, or they are

         25  supposed to provide physicians.
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          2                 MS. LEON: Well, we do not have a full

          3  contract with State University.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, what do you

          5  have?

          6                 MS. LEON: We only have a partial

          7  contract for radiation --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: For who?

          9                 MS. LEON: Radiation services,

         10  radiology services and psychiatric services.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, any of those

         12  services relate to the issue at hand when it comes

         13  to the emergency room, which is what this hearing is

         14  about that you might lose all of this money because

         15  you were in violation of federal?

         16                 MS. LEON: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Councilman Henry,

         18  do you have a question?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me go now to

         21  where I believe I have problems. You see, I think

         22  Council Member Boyland is not here but let me pick

         23  up where I thought she was going to which I have a

         24  problem with.

         25                 You see, when you get caught with
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          2  your tail down, and everybody comes into the rescue,

          3  so when the question is asked will you meet what you

          4  were cited for before the 14th of February, I

          5  guarantee you you will. That is without a doubt. At

          6  Kings County, WoodHull, Harlem, Lincoln, any HHC

          7  facility. Or for that matter any voluntary hospital,

          8  because you know they are not doing so super duper

          9  blessed mother, because when they have something

         10  wrong, you get one day but it is not every single

         11  day of the week and 365 days of the year, it seems

         12  that there is a mentality because of privatization

         13  that whenever it is an HHC facility, it is always

         14  constant.

         15                 Now, I am not defending HHC, let me

         16  tell you right now. However, I have a problem. Dr.

         17  Dunn, you are the Senior Vice President of Medical,

         18  who at the facility, does every acute care facility,

         19  or for that matter, any component, whether it be a

         20  clinic or what have you, do they have somebody who

         21  was supposed to be the overseer to make sure that

         22  any rules and regulations, whether old, new, changed

         23  are conformed to? Is there a quality assurance

         24  person who is supposed to constantly be on top of

         25  any changes in ways of doing business?
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          2                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who is that

          4  person at Kings County Hospital?

          5                 MS. LEON: Mrs. Audrey Phillip-Cesar.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How long has she

          7  been there?

          8                 MS. LEON: About five years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Five years, ten

         10  years, 20 years, 30 years.

         11                 MS. LEON: Five years.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Five years. She

         13  is responsible, correct? She is responsible to

         14  inform you, or anyone else, when there are changes

         15  of rules and regulations. You know, legislation, for

         16  example, and I have been around for a long time,

         17  what used to be when I was in the Assembly, those

         18  laws may have been amended 60, 70 times when you

         19  passed laws, you know, the anti-poverty, that has

         20  been changed so many times, somebody has to keep

         21  track of this constant change; is that fair to say?

         22                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And when you

         24  became the Executive Director at Kings County, or

         25  when you came into the health field, haven't there
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          2  been changes constantly ever since you started, even

          3  to the present, in your own professional arena?

          4                 MS. LEON: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          6                 So, somebody is supposed to keep

          7  track of these rules and regulations to inform the

          8  proper personnel, including the Executive Director,

          9  when there are changes, correct?

         10                 MS. LEON: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And when that

         12  happens, isn't it incumbent upon you to send out a

         13  memorandum to all of the heads of the Departments,

         14  Chairmans, this and that, to inform them so that

         15  whoever was supposed to take off that sign, should

         16  not have waited a whole year until the federal

         17  government came in because some disgruntled employee

         18  all of a sudden is smart enough to call them and

         19  then they come in and they find the sign; is that

         20  fair to say?

         21                 MS. LEON: Yes. Except the fact that

         22  the sign is not an irrelevant. The sign is not a

         23  sign, it should not exist in an institution because

         24  the sign related specifically Medicaid/Managed Care

         25  patients.
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          2                 The reason why the sign was removed

          3  is because, as I indicated, that HCFA felt that this

          4  might insinuate the fact --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me. Excuse

          6  me. I am a little naive, but let me make sure.

          7                 If 80 percent of your budget relies

          8  upon HCFA, I don't care what anyone says, do you

          9  think I am not going to cater to HCFA?

         10                 MS. LEON: That's why we took it down.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand, but

         12  that is not the point.

         13                 My point is, someone has to have been

         14  sleeping on the wheel.

         15                 MS. BROWN: If I may?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, you may not

         17  agree with me, and I am not singling you out,

         18  Madame, don't get me wrong, because I go through

         19  that every day at WoodHull Hospital too, the fact is

         20  when everybody is back to normal, and we think we

         21  are back to normal, when the cat's away, the mic

         22  play.

         23                 For example, since some members

         24  brought issues that have nothing to do with this,

         25  let me bring you an issue that has nothing to do
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          2  with this hearing.

          3                 My dear sister, friend, Laray Brown,

          4  is WoodHull Hospital a non-smoking hospital?

          5                 MS. BROWN: All acute hospitals are

          6  non-smoking.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am not saying

          8  all hospitals, I am being --

          9                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I don't want

         11  people to say I am singling out Kings County

         12  Hospital, okay?

         13                 MS. BROWN: Is WoodHull Hospital a

         14  non-smoking hospital?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you know

         17  almost a month ago there was a fire in the locker

         18  room of an employee at WoodHull Hospital?

         19                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you know why

         21  there was a fire? Because somebody who was supposed

         22  to be supervising was not doing its job, and since

         23  they know that they are not going to be seen,

         24  someone took it upon themselves to go smoke and

         25  caused a fire.
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          2                 You know what I thank God didn't

          3  happen? It could have been a patient. Understand

          4  where I am coming from. I don't want you to leave

          5  this hearing thinking it is all rosie. No, it's not.

          6                 If we do not hold accountable

          7  everybody, not only you, us, too. Folks, you want

          8  more staff, you want more equipment? Then let's

          9  bring back the subsidy for HHC that one year we gave

         10  them $75 million and every single facility was doing

         11  good. You know what we did this year? And I commend

         12  the Speaker and the leadership, we put $3 million,

         13  because for almost three years we had zero.

         14                 So, as we talk about the budget

         15  coming up, we want to have more staff, we want to

         16  have more equipment, then let me remind you, we are

         17  about to begin the budget process. But you can't

         18  expect her to deliver on services if you are all

         19  admitting that she doesn't have the means.

         20                 Now, I want to ask you this question.

         21  Dr. Dunn, has HHC initiated a review of all other

         22  hospitals to see if they are in compliance with

         23  HCFA's rules and regulations?

         24                 DR. VAN DUNN: Yes, Mr. Chair. In

         25  fact, we sent out a note to all of the facilities

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  outlining the new interpretive guidelines that HCFA

          3  sent out in June, so each of the facilities have

          4  received this.

          5                 In addition, we have had sessions

          6  with all of the medical directors and all of the

          7  regulatory affairs directors, educating them on what

          8  the interpretive guidelines are and what the

          9  requirements of the facilities are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, hopefully if

         11  any disgruntled employee, any visitors, any

         12  politician, any news media comes into any of our

         13  facilities and then decides to call HCFA, that the

         14  likelihood would be that we will not see another

         15  facility in the same predicament as this facility?

         16                 Not that you can guarantee it, but at

         17  least you can fairly say that you have properly

         18  educated, informed and if there should be another

         19  facility similar in the same situation at Kings

         20  County Hospital, then my next question is, what

         21  action are you going to take against the staff?

         22                 DR. VAN DUNN: That is a question that

         23  Dr. Marcos could answer for you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That's right.

         25                 DR. VAN DUNN: I can tell you that all
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          2  of the executive directors of our facilities are all

          3  aware of the EMTALA regulations and have made it a

          4  priority to make sure that their facilities are in

          5  total compliance.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And is that

          7  policy also by the President, indicates that he will

          8  not tolerate any executive director who is

          9  responsible for a facility to find itself in the

         10  predicament that Kings County found itself? Is that

         11  what you are saying to us?

         12                 MS. BROWN: Dr. Marcos, and the Board

         13  of Directors of HHC --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry, what?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Dr. Marcos, as the

         16  President of HHC, and the Board of Directors of

         17  Health and Hospitals Corporation, have consistently

         18  said and continue to state that quality health care

         19  is a priority and being accreditation ready, being

         20  survey ready by any entity state or federal is a

         21  priority, and that is an expectation on the part of

         22  the leadership of the hospitals, both the executive

         23  and the clinical leadership of the hospitals.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is that a policy

         25  that is verbally, or is that a policy that has been

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  passed and directed to be implemented by the

          3  president, since he is the Chief Operating Officer

          4  of the Corporation? Or is that just a verbal

          5  position?

          6                 MS. BROWN: That is a position that is

          7  inculcated verbally, as well as in expectations of

          8  the managers, in terms of their job descriptions and

          9  in terms of their work plans for the year and in

         10  terms of their evaluations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         12                 Any other questions by my colleagues

         13  with respect to this issue?

         14                 Let me just simply say I thank you

         15  for coming. Let me say that this Chair and this

         16  Committee, not only at Kings County, will be looking

         17  at facilities to see whether they are conforming.

         18                 Let me also say, both to the

         19  Administration and to the Mayor's people, one of the

         20  things that I said when I first became chairman of

         21  this Committee, and the reason why I have not done

         22  it is because it is -- I have been so busy keeping

         23  up with what has been going wrong with several

         24  things, not just HHC but, you know, mergers, DOH,

         25  mental health, you name it, I made a commitment and
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          2  I expect to sit with the Administration, because I

          3  intend to move these Committee oversights, and I

          4  intend to go directly to a facility, where not only

          5  the Committee will be able to walk through the

          6  facility, but then also be able to hear both from

          7  the personnel, and I don't know if the CAB, because

          8  I know each facility has CABs, I would like to also

          9  be able to hear from them.

         10                 I believe that when we work together,

         11  and if we hear something that perhaps you don't

         12  hear, I and my colleagues have an obligation to let

         13  you know.

         14                 So, having said that, seeing no other

         15  business -- is there anybody in the audience who

         16  wants to testify before I release HHC? If not,

         17  again, I usually give the last word to both you,

         18  Madame Vice President, since it is your facility, if

         19  you would like to have any closing remarks, please

         20  feel free to do so.

         21                 MS. LEON: It is a fact that Kings

         22  County Hospital is very committed to its mission, to

         23  care for all of our patients who come through our

         24  doors, regardless of their inability to pay and this

         25  is something that we will commit ourselves to. And
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          2  thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, Laray, you

          4  or Dr. Dunn, anything you would like?

          5                 Seeing no other business before this

          6  Committee, I thank you for your patients and

          7  tolerance and I look forward to the future in coming

          8  together.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of January 1999.
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